
   

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

Accommodation is Provided Upon Request 

 

Please Turn Off Cell Phones – Thank You 

 

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

La ciudad de McCleary es un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McCleary City Council 
 

AGENDA 

 

May 8, 2013 
 

7:00 Council Meeting 
 

Flag Salute 

Roll Call 

Public Hearings:  

    

Public Comment:  

Minutes (Tab A)  

Mayor’s Report/Comments:   

    

Staff Reports: Dan Glenn, City Attorney (Tab B) 

 Nick Bird, Director of Public Works (Tab C) 

 Staff Reports (Tab D) 

    

 

Old Business: Panic Alarm (Tab E) 

 Ordinance 796 Clarification (Tab F) 

  

 

New Business: Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) 

 2014 STIP (Tab H) 

 Fireworks Permit (Tab I) 

 Council Vacancy (Discussion) 

 Asphalt Patching (Tab J) 

   

Ordinances:  

 

 

Resolutions: Public Services (Tab K) 

Designation of Public Records Officer and Designating Fees (Tab L) 
 

Vouchers  

Mayor/Council Comments 

Public Comment 

Executive Session - Settlement 

Adjournment 

Agenda May 8, 2013 1



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                       Regular City Council Meeting

                          Wednesday, April 24, 2013

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmen Catterlin, Reed, and Ator. Councilman Schiller phoned in.

ABSENT None.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Dan Glenn, Wendy Collins, Nick Bird, George Crumb, John 
Graham and Jon Hinton from Gray & Osborne

PUBLIC COMMENT Grays Harbor County Councilman Wes Cormier introduced himself and stated he will be
attending meetings occasionally to stay current with what's happening around the cities in
Grays Harbor. Mayor Dent spoke regarding the potential new company coming to McCleary
and how badly jobs are needed in this area. He said the company calls themselves Halo Steel
and he is hoping they go through with their plans. Mayor Dent said as soon as he has
concrete information of new progress, he will inform the community.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilman Ator, seconded by Councilmen Reed to approve the

minutes from  the April 10, 2013 meeting. Motion Carried 4-0. 

MAYOR'S COMMENTS Mayor Dent commented on the attorney consultant agreement stating the attorney's are out of 
Seattle and have dealt with a lot of big firms and will be able to represent the City in the event 
the new manufacturing plant moves forward. 

Nick Bird took Mayor Dent for a tour around the City and also took him to see the city well 
improvements. He was amazed at the size of the equipment that is used and was impressed 
with the progress. This is the result of the water fee increases that have happened over the 
past five years.

Mayor Dent mentioned the recent article from the Associated Press and was printed in the 
Tacoma News Tribune regarding LEOFF1 cost and how much of an impact it is for small 
cities. The article mentioned McCleary and stated the cost for our LEOFF1 retirees cost the 
City $80,000 to $90,000 per year which would average approximately $129 per person in 
town. The financial impact is going to be disastrous for Aberdeen and Hoquiam.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Mr. Glenn has provided a report for the Council and welcomes any questions. Dan informed
the Council there is a new piece of legislation happening that will prevent gender terms in
legislation, which will change our current City Councilmen to City Councilmember. 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Nick said the motor control center for the well that was missing in now installed and operating
fine. 

PANIC ALARM The front office reviewed the equipment offered by the other companies and agreed on one.
Staff will be provide a formal recommendation at the next meeting. He feels the staff is very
friendly and does a good job.

TCA FIRE STATION 
AGREEMENT

It was moved by Councilman Ator, seconded by Councilman Catterlin to drop the TCA

fire station consultant agreement. Motion Carried 3-1 with Councilman Schiller voting in

the negative.

3RD STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
LOCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT

Discussion took place whether to accept money for the planning and design phase and
commit $38,000 toward it or to turn the money down, which totals $237,000. Comments were
made regarding other agencies being more apt to become a recipient of future grant money
when a plan and design is in place. It appears entities that are shovel ready are given the

grants more often than those that have not started at all. It was moved by Councilman

Catterlin, seconded by Councilman Schiller to authorize execution of the Local Agency

Agreement and associated Project Prospectus for 3rd Street Improvements LAA, which

will be in the amount of $237,000 for planning and design and the City's total financial

commitment will be $38,000. Motion Carried 4-0.

Minutes (Tab A) May 8, 2013 2



BEAR FESTIVAL REQUESTS The McCleary Bear Festival submitted a letter of request for the Council to authorize them to
operate pony rides and a petting zoo. They also asked for authorization to have a beer garden
on City property. Bear Festival sent a member to address the Council and answer any
questions. After discussion, the Council and Mayor agreed to the requests with the exception
of the beer garden, due to liability issues. There are other locations in the City that could be
utilized and Mayor Dent encouraged the Bear Festival to reach out to those property owners to

work something out. It was moved by Councilman Catterlin, seconded by Councilman

Reed to authorize the Bear Festival to operate pony rides and a petting zoo during the

festival in July and to leave the current Ordinance as is with no amendments for a beer

garden. Motion Carried 4-0.

TRANSFORMER 
PROCUREMENT

It was moved by Councilman Ator, seconded by Councilman Reed to authorize the

procurement of the 4kV transformer from T & R Electric for $15,000 plus tax, contingent

upon Elcon's confirmation recommendation. Motion Carried 4-0.

CHANGE ORDER NO. 4 Council received a copy of Change Order No. 4 for the demolition and decommissioning of
Well No. 1. This was previously brought to Council for authorization, however, the previous

cost was shown to be $9,500, which was in error. The actual bid amount was $9,875. It was

moved by Councilman Catterlin, seconded by Councilman Ator to authorize Change

Order No. 4 for the Well Field Improvement Project as presented. Motion Carried 4-0.

ORDINANCE NO. 796 
PROFESSIONAL 
CONSULTANTS

It was moved by Councilman Ator, seconded by Councilman Reed to adopt Ordinance

No. 796, an ordinance of the City of McCleary adding a new section to chapter 17.40

MMC, Section 17.40.155, consultants fees, and fixing a time when the same shall

become effective. Roll Call taken in the affirmative. Ordinance Adopted 4-0.

ORDINANCE - PARK & 
CEMETERY AMENDMENT

It was moved by Councilman Schiller, seconded by Councilman Ator to table the park and
cemetery Ordinance.

RESOLUTION - PUBLIC 
SERVICES

Tabled.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

PUBLIC COMMENT None.

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 36277-36347 including EFT's in the 
amount of $186,987.12.

Payroll checks approved were 36042-36142, including EFT's in the amount of $67,087.27 and 
36143-36161, including EFT's in the amount of $91,381.73.

It was moved by Councilmen Ator, seconded by Councilman Reed to approve the 

vouchers. Motion Carried 4-0.

MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilman Catterlin, seconded by Councilman Ator to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:12 PM. The next meeting will be May 8, 2013 at 7:00 PM. Motion Carried 4-

0.

       

Mayor Gary Dent:                                                                        

Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins:                                                                        

Minutes (Tab A) May 8, 2013 3



CIty Attorney Report (Tab B) May 8, 2013 4



CIty Attorney Report (Tab B) May 8, 2013 5



CIty Attorney Report (Tab B) May 8, 2013 6



STAFF REPORT 
 
To: Mayor Dent 
From: Nick Bird, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 2, 2013 
Re: Current Non-Agenda Activity 
 
 
Well 2 & 3 Project 

 
The Motor Control Center is installed and equipment is scheduled to startup beginning 
May 8.  We will start with the pump, then chemical feed equipment, then controls, and 
end with the treatment system.  At this point in time, it is still realistic to see Well No. 2 
online the week of May 20.  In the near future, we will be putting together a total project 
cost analysis, based on the factors that are known at this time.  I hope to have that 
presented to you for your review by the next Council Meeting.   
 
Ecology Grant/Loan Program 

 
We have not heard of any new news regarding this program.  I am currently waiting for a 
phone call back from Ecology regarding this subject.  I hope to have more information to 
verbally pass along at the meeting.      
 

Seasonal Workers 

 
We have had the seasonal worker positions advertised for a month or so and have 
received numerous applications.  We are currently in the process of reviewing the 
applications and hope to have interviews (if necessary) and the selection done in the next 
couple of weeks with the hope that the individuals can start mid to late May.   
 

Snowbird Rate 

 
Last meeting Council was concerned that the proposed resolution regarding utility service 
usage would conflict with the snowbird rates.  After scouring the existing resolutions, we 
reviewed the meeting minutes and discovered in the January 12, 2011 minutes that the 
City discontinued and eliminated the snow bird rate.  Please keep in mind that the 
proposed resolution provides a similar approach, where an individual can turn their 
services off for up to 6 months without penalty if they were to travel south for the winter.    
 
Underground Boring Equipment 

 
It is common for both the water and power departments to utilize underground boring 
equipment to push pipe underneath roadways instead of cutting and removing the asphalt 
to place the pipe.  When conducting the underground power replacement on Olin and 
Luscombe, unfortunately, the head of the boring tool was a casualty of the work, and now 
rests approximately 14 – 17 feet underneath Luscombe. Rather than open up the 
intersection incurring significant additional costs due to shoring requirements, 

Tab C 

Director of Public Works Report (Tab C) May 8, 2013 7



  STAFF REPORT 
  Non-Agenda Activity 
  May 2, 2013 
 Page 2 of 3 
 
internalized labor costs, and equipment rental as well as the risk that a substantial portion 
of the intersection would need to be replaced, we elected to leave the head in the ground.  
When you are conducting small diameter bores, this is relatively common.  We have been 
fortunate enough to maintain this head for over 6 years, so it has lived a very useful life.  
Unfortunately, we will need to acquire a replacement bore head.   
 
The materials procurement bid limit, as identified by RCW 35.23.352(6), is $7,500.  
When we originally purchased the head, the cost was approximately $6,000.  We 
anticipate that purchasing the replacement head will be close to the bid limit, but we have 
not received any estimates yet.  Once we have an estimate and a course planned will 
present the proposed approach to Council for consideration.   
 
3

rd
 Street Improvements Phase I 

 
The Local Agency Agreement (LAA) and Project Prospectus Package was submitted to 
WSDOT earlier this week.  Minor revisions were required by WSDOT, but these 
revisions are not intended to impact the total funding package.  At this time, the project 
package is under review at the state level.  Once the region and headquarters gives their 
blessing, it will be passed on to the Federal Highway Administration for their approval.  
After the prospectus package and LAA is executed, then we will be able to proceed with 
selecting the design firm, as required by the Local Agency Guidelines (LAG) manual.    
 
Additionally, you are aware that the City is responsible for the local match, which is 
approximately $38,000.  I believe the original impression was that the entire amount 
needed to be provided from the Street Fund.  I will be working on an analysis to 
demonstrate power, water, and stormwater’s contribution to this number as well, as 
improvements for these utilities will also be made during the project.  As such, in the 
event improvements are made for the funds, it does not seem prudent to have another 
fund shoulder the entire fiscal burden of the project.   
 
Bear Festival Fun Run 

 
Chief Crumb and I met with Kari Sample regarding the Bear Festival Fun Run this week.  
The routes and traffic control have been planned.  Only minor details (garbage, etc.) are 
left to iron out regarding the Fun Run.    
 
Simpson Door Conservation Plan 

 
We have recently met with Simpson Door regarding their energy consumption.  They are 
actively entertaining ideas on how to increase productivity while decreasing energy 
consumption.  To facilitate this process, Cascade Energy, through BPA will be working 
with the City and Simpson Door to implement a “Track and Tune” program to determine 
where Simpson is using energy and cost effective operational changes to minimize 
energy consumption.  This will be completed at no cost to the City and Simpson Door.  
Once the Scoping Analysis is completed, we will have a better idea of how we can 

Director of Public Works Report (Tab C) May 8, 2013 8



  STAFF REPORT 
  Non-Agenda Activity 
  May 2, 2013 
 Page 3 of 3 
 
contribute to this activity.  An agreement between Simpson Door and the City will be 
required to facilitate this process.  Since an agreement will be required, it will ultimately 
end up on your desk.   
 
County Chip Seal Program 

 
We have recently discussed with the County the possibility of utilizing them for some 
minor chip seal work this summer.  Due to staff reductions, they will be hard pressed to 
complete more than 0.25 to 0.50 lane miles for local agencies.  We are still trying to 
coordinate with the staff completing the work to ensure that they have the ability to 
schedule us in.  County Engineer Russ Esses indicated that the average cost is about 
$30,000 per lane mile.  We had discussed a while back about having the County assist 
with the well entrance, which is approximately 0.1 miles.  We estimate that chip sealing 
the well entrance can be completed for approximately $4,000 - $4,500.     
 
Summer Schedule 

 
We touched on this topic earlier in the year, however it is fast approaching.  This is just a 
reminder, presuming the Council still chooses to implement this schedule, the only 
meetings over the summer will occur on June 26, July 24, and August 28.   

Director of Public Works Report (Tab C) May 8, 2013 9



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
� � � � �  � � � 	 � � � � � �� � 
 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 
 � � 	 
� � �  !  �  " #
· $ % & ' ( ) * + , ( - . + / , - 0 ' ( ) . ( . . % - 1 ) + 2 0 3 4 . 5 3 0 & + 0 6 + % 7 ) 4 8 . . - . . + 0 9 . : / / ( * - ;
·

� �  � � � � � < � = � � � � � � � > = � � � > � 	 
 = � ? � 	 � > = � 	 � > 
 � � � > @
·

� = � � � � = � A � B � � � � 	 � B � � > � � > � 	 
 = � ? � � � � 	 � � 	 � � � � � = � 	 > 
 � � � @
·

B � � = � � ? � 	 � 
 � � 	 B � � � > � C D � E @ F G H < 
 @  � � 
 � ? � � � 
 � � ? I � � � � � 	 � � � > > � � � @
·

� = � � J 	 � � � ? � A � � � 	 
 � � 
 � 	 � � � � > � 	 � � � 	 > � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � 
 = � � � 
 
 � K � � � � � = � � � @L M  # N O � " P # # M " #  O Q R S T R " # #
· U V W X Y Z X W Y [ \ ] [ ^ _ ` a b c d e f g W e h i j Z Y k W l Z h g \ [ V W X Y Z X W Y [ \ [ Z Z j h W Y mn o p p q r s t u< � A � � � � � � 	 > � � A � 
 � � 	 � � � v � � 
 > = � A � K � � 	 � � � > � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � � � � � 
 � K � � 	 A � � � � � 
 � � w � @ I 	 � = � � 
 � � � � � 	 > 
 � � � � 
 � � 	 � >� � � > � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � 	 @

Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 10



� x y P z P y { | } L y ~ � {y } y � � � { � � � y }� � y �y } y � � � � x y P z P y { � � Q � � L � y P } L� � f [ Z � W Y a W Y � e � W � � _ _ � � h f j W Y g � e � l e h i l W X ] Y [ � W h [ Y W � ] [ W l � � W f [ e Z h f e hX W Y f Z h Z Y g \ X V Z h W � � W W [ e h i j e [ V X Z [ W h [ e ] �] X X � e � ] h [ f m� � e � l e h i � W Y � e [ f � f f � W l � ^ ^ � W � Z l W � f � h W j � Z h f [ Y � � [ e Z h � ] l l e [ e Z h f � g Z [ VY W f e l W h [ e ] � ] h l � Z � � W Y � e ] � m� � ] h � W � e W j f � W Y � Z Y � W l � � � W � e W j e h i X � ] h f � Z Y g � e � l e h i � Z l W ] h l � � h e � e X ] �� Z l W � Z � X � e ] h � W m� h f X W � [ e Z h f � W Y � Z Y � W l ^ � b � � e W � l e h f X W � [ e Z h f � j Y e [ e h i Z � � Z Y Y W � [ e Z h f Z Y] X X Y Z � e h i j Z Y k m� e h ] � f Z Y � W Y [ e � e � ] [ W f Z �� � � � X ] h � e W f ^ _ � W Y � Z Y � e h i Z � [ V W � e h ] � e h f X W � [ e Z h � e f f � e h i Z �� W Y [ e � e � ] [ W Z � Z � � � X ] h � \ ] � � Z j e h i � f W Z � [ V Wf [ Y � � [ � Y W m� Z � X � ] e h [ f � W � W e � W l ^ � � h � W f [ e i ] [ W ] h l ] l l Y W f f � e [ e � W h Z Y f [ ] � � Y W X Z Y [ W le f f � W f � Z g [ ] e h Y W f Z � � [ e Z h Z Y ] � � W X [ ] g � W� Z � X Y Z � e f W m� � e f ] h � W � W [ [ W Y f a W h [ _ ^ � � Z Y � ] � h Z [ e � W � Y Z � [ V W � e [ \ e h � Z Y � e h i � e [ e � W h f Z �� e Z � ] [ e Z h f ] h l X Y Z � e l e h i W � X W � [ ] [ e Z h Z � [ V W � e [ \� Z Y � Z � X � e ] h � W m� �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¡ ¦ § ¡ ¨ � � � © © � ¦ ¤a W h [ ª ^ b � Z Y � ] � h Z [ e � W � Y Z � � e [ \ ] � [ W Y h Z [ e � e � ] [ e Z h � Y Z �� W � ] \ [ V ] [ f W Y � e � W V ] f g W W h f [ Z X X W l m� � e � l e h i « W X ] Y [ � W h [� W � W h � W ¬ ^ � ª  m � � ¬ _ ` � ª m �  � � h l f i W h W Y ] [ W l g \ [ V W � � e � l e h i « W X ] Y [ � W h [ � Y Z �X W Y � e [ f � e h f X W � [ e Z h f � Y W � e W j f W [ � m
| S O � ® � ¯ ¯ °  � N �  S O #� " � "  ! " ± x S O # " R ! N �  S OQ " R ²  � # P # # M " ± � " ³ N � " # Q N  ±y ®  # | S O � ® y S � N ° � " ³ N � " # Q N  ± y S � N � "´ ] Y � V � � ¬ ^ � � ª ª m ª ª ¬ ` � ^ � � m � ª� X Y e � � � ¬ b � `   m � � ¬ ^ b � ^ � � m � �µ ¶ p · q ¸ o ¹ º q s s q ¸ t t q r s s o» q r ¼ r s t µ ¶ p · q ¸ o ¹ º q s s q ¸ t t q r s s o½ ¾ r q ¸ t ¿ q À o r Á r o s Â À q t t q r s s o» q r ¼ r s t ¿ q À o r Á r o s Â À q t t q r s s o½ ¾ r q ¸ t� � � �Ã À s Â Ä q Ã À À o ¶ r s t Å q r Á Â r Æ ¿ s o Ç Ç q Á ¿ q ¸ Ä Â À q È r É ½ À À ¶ Ç Â q ÁÊ Ë � � Ì � Ê

Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 11



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Paul Nott, Light & Power 

Date: May 1, 2013 

Re: March/April Report  

 

Monthly Statistics;    YTD Totals; 

 

New Services;    2      3 

System Outages;   1      3 

Pole Replacements;   3      3 

Maintenance Work Orders;  5      8 

Billable Work Orders;  2      4  

 

The last two months have consisted of two new services, one underground fault, three 

pole change outs and five maintenance work orders. 

 

The Light and Power crew completed the re-conductor from 9
th

 and Simpson to the 

bridge. We will be proceeding the rest of the way to the west exit after we complete the 

other projects that we are currently working on. 

 

Currently, we are in the process of replacing the underground primary on Olin and 

Luscombe. We intend to have that job wrapped up next week. 

 

New construction projects are appearing to pick up with the increase of estimate requests. 

 

As always if anyone has any questions feel free to contact us… 

 

Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 12



Staff  Report 

 

To:      Mayor Dent 

From: George M. Crumb, Chief of Police 

Date:  May 3, 2013.   

RE:     For May 8, 2013 Council Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________  

 

SUMMARY OF POLICE INCIDENTS / ACTIVITIES: 
The below listed information are calls or contacts received by McCleary Police Officers either generated by 

Grays Harbor County dispatch 911 service, citizen reports, call in, contacts, or other officer generated 

incidents:  

 

*796 incident histories reported as of time of this report.   

 

-Speeding                                                

-DWLS 

-Speeding in School Zone               

-Burglary 

-Fire Response’s                                

-Disorderly Conduct/Obstructing 

-Traffic Stop’s (from 020713)                                    

-Harassment  

-Weapons Offense 

-Agency Assist’s (& Public Works x3)                               

-Drug Incidents (1 OD) 

-Animal Complaints 

-Curfew Violations  

-Traffic Hazard Reports   

-Welfare Checks 

-Trespass  (Criminal)   

-Suspicious Person/Vehicle 

-Police Information or Referrals 

-Alcohol Offense             

-Traffic Offense/Reckless 

-Found/Lost  Property Reports 

-Motorist Assist/Citizen Assist 

-Theft Reports 

-Death, report 

-Juvenile Problems/Run-a-way/missing 

-Malicious Mischief 

-Warrant Arrests/Search Warrant 

-911 Open Line or Hang Up 

-Domestic Violence 

-Citizen dispute/Civil 

-D.U.I. 

-Audible Alarm 

-Subject Stop 

-Traffic Accident 

-Noise Complaints   

-Fraud   

-Sex Offense 

-Parking Complaint

-Suicide Attempt                                                                   -Fraud 

 

Discussion: Open: 
 
                                          . 

 

Council Members Present: ALL…. Mr. Ator, Mr. Reed, Mr. Caterlin, Mr. Lant,                                                            

                                                          Mr.Shiller.   

Mayor Dent:  Present / Not Present   __________________ 

 

Officer Reporting:  Chief Crumb _________________              __________________ 

Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 13



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
� � � � � � �   � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � �� � 
 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � 
� � � � � � � �  � 	 � � 
 � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  � � 
 ! � � " � � � � 	  � � # � 	 � � 	  � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � 
� � 	 
 � $
·

! � 
 � � � � � " � � � � � � " �  	 � � � 	 
 � � 
 � � � � � � $ � 	  � � � $ % � � " � 
 
 � 	 
 � � � 
 � � �  � 
 � �� � � � � � � � � � 
 � 	 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 
 �  � 
 � � � & $ ' � � � � � 	 ( " � $ & � � � � � 	 �� � �  � 	 � � � 
 
 � � 	 � 	 
 � �  � � � � � � " � 
 � � � � � � �  � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � 
 � � " � � � � 	 � � " � 	 
 � 
 � � �� � 
 � � � � 
 � $
·

� � � � � �  � � � 
 � � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � 
 
 � � ) � 
 � $
·

& � � � � � � 	 
 � 	 � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 
 � 	 � 	 � � � � � � � � * � � � � � 	 
 � 	  " � � � � � � � $
·

& � � � " � � � � 	 � �  � 	 � 
 � � � � � # � � � � � � 
 � � � � 	  � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � 	 
 � � $
· + �  � � 	 
 � � � � � � 	 �  � 	 
  � � �  � � � 	 � 
 � �  � � # � � ( � � � � � , - . $ & � � � � � � �  � � � 
 
 � �� " � � / 0 0 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 1 � 
 � 	 # � 2  � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � $
·

& � � � " � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � 	 
 � � � 
 � � � 
 
 � �  � � � � � � 3 � � 
 $ & � � �  � � � � � 
 � � � 
 � �� � � 
  �  	 
 � � � � & � � � 4 � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � $
·

& � � � " � 
 � � � �  � 	 �  � 2  � 
 � � � � � " � � � 
 � 
 � � � � � � � " � $
·

& � � � � � 
 � � � � � �  � 	 � � 	  � � � � � 	 � � � � # � 	 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � 	 
 �  	 $
·

! � �  5 � # � � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	  � � " � � � 
 � � � 
 � � 
 � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � 
 � � 
 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 � $
·

) � 
 �  �  � � � � � 	 � �  � 	 
  � � � � 	 ( � � � � � 6 - . $ ( � � 
 � � � � 
 � 7 � 	 � 
 � � # �  " � 	 
 � � � � �
 � � � � � � 	 � � $ & �  � � � � � � � � � � � 0 � � � 	 
 � � � � �  � 
 � � � 
 � �  � � 
 � � � � � � � � 
 � 7 � 	 �� � � � 	 � � 	 $
·

� � � � � � � 
 � � � � � �  � � � � # � 	 � 
 
 � � 
 � � 
 
 � � � � � � � 
 � 	  � �   � 	 �  � 
 $ & � � � " � 
 � � �� � 
 � � � �   � 	 � � 	  � � 8 �  
 � � � � � # 
 � � 
  � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � 
 � �  � $ � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 
 �  � 	  � � �  � � � � � � � � 
 � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � � - . $
·

( 	  � � � �  � � � �  � � � � 
 � � � 	 � 
 � # � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 
 � 	 � � 	   � � � � � � � 	 
 � 	 � 	 � �� � 
 � � � � � # � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 
 � � � 
 � �  � 
 � � � � �  � � � � 
 � � � � 	  � � � �  � 	 � � $9 : ; < = > ? @ A ? B ; C = A D E F < B D G H < B I E J A ? : K ? F H E < ? D L M ! � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 
 � � 
 	 � �  �� 
 
 � 	 
 � � 	 � � � � " � � 	 � �  � � � 
 � � 
 � � �  � � �  � � # � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	  
 � � # 
 � � � $

Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 14



Staff Report from Water and Wastewater Departments

 

Overall with the improving weather we are seeing great 

improvement in operations at the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant. 

As you can see with the decreasing rainfall, as we see in the 

previous years the inflows to the treatment plant have fallen 

off. 

Compared to January to end of April of 2012 we have received 

10 inches less rain this year than we did last year.

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Jan Feb Mar April May

influent flows to treatment plant

Staff Report from Water and Wastewater Departments

Overall with the improving weather we are seeing great 

improvement in operations at the Wastewater Treatment 

As you can see with the decreasing rainfall, as we see in the 

inflows to the treatment plant have fallen 

Compared to January to end of April of 2012 we have received 

10 inches less rain this year than we did last year. 

May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

influent flows to treatment plant

2011 2012 2013

Staff Report from Water and Wastewater Departments 

Overall with the improving weather we are seeing great 

improvement in operations at the Wastewater Treatment 

 

As you can see with the decreasing rainfall, as we see in the 

inflows to the treatment plant have fallen 

Compared to January to end of April of 2012 we have received 

Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 15



 

Training begins net week on the new Water Treatment plant. I 

believe all of us are looking 

and enjoying the benefits of the new treatment plant

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

Jan Feb Mar April May

McCleary Precipitation 

Precipitation 2011

Training begins net week on the new Water Treatment plant. I 

believe all of us are looking forward to putting Well #2 online 

and enjoying the benefits of the new treatment plant

May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

McCleary Precipitation - Inches

Precipitation 2012 Precipitation 2013

 

Training begins net week on the new Water Treatment plant. I 

forward to putting Well #2 online 

and enjoying the benefits of the new treatment plant 

Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 16



 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Colin Mercer Webmaster 

Date: May 1, 2013 

Re: April Website & Help Desk 

 

Re-Occurring Website Activities 
• Council Agenda/Packet posted online. 

• Council Minutes posted online. 
 

New Website Activity 
• Post information about Spring Clean up and remove after the event. 

 

 

 

Additional Tasks 
• Coordinate ordering of Council I-Pads and set up of wireless network with Adnets. 

• Coordinate proposals for new panic alarm system for the front office. 

 

 

Help Desk Activity 

 

Month 

 

Number of Incidents 

Reported 

Staff 

Reported / Closed / 

Open 

Citizen 

Reported / Closed / 

Open 

January 5 5 / 1 / 26 0 / 0 / 13 

February 15 5 / 11 / 20 10 / 7 / 16 

March 4 2 / 2 / 20 2 / 8 / 10 

April 12 8 / 0 /28 4 / 2 / 12 

 

Website Comments: 

 
First Name:  Robert 

Last Name:  LaCount 

Comments:  I want to thank the officer that went out of his way to help us when we ran out of gas on our bike in the dark. 

He was respectful,polite and very helpful He went out of his way to make sure we were safe Thank You very much 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 17



Website Traffic          April 1, 2013 through April 30, 2013 (Top visited pages shown only) 
�������� 	
�������� 	�������������
��

��������	
������� ����� �������

���������������� 	�
� 	��	��

������
��� ���� 	�
���

������������������� ��	� ������

���������� ��
� ������

�
��������
����
���� �
�� �����

����������������� ��� ������

���
�������
������ ���� ������

�
����� ���� �����

����������������� � ���� ������

����� �!������� ���� �����

������������
�� ���� ������

������������������� ���� �����

"�����#�"����$����� ��� ������

%������������� ���� ������

�
��������
����������� �
	� �����

����� �
�� ��
���

��&'������ �
�� ��
���

�����������
��� ��� 
�����

	�������(��)�� 	� 
����

(� ��*��
$��� �� 
���

+,,-./0�%����� �� 
����

�����
���������������#�%������� �� 
����

�����
���1������
�������������� ��� 
����

������ 
�
�� ��� 
�����

�
��2�3����������*����������� �
� 
�����

� ������
���
������� 	�� 
����

�����������
���� ��� 
�	���

4�������" ���1
��4 ��)5� ��� 
��	��

	
������� ��� 
�����

6�����
�������������� ��� 
�����

��

��� 
�
��+,,7� ��� 
�����

%�������������� 
�
�� �	� 
����

�����
���1������
������������� ��� 
��	��

89� �������������� 
�
�� ��� 
�����

� ��������� 
�
��+,,:� ��� 
�����

����������� �
� 
�����

��������666�4 ���������
������
��
����
������
������ �
� 
�����

7;0<���������2������
���"���
��2��=��
�����2�����	�>���
���"����� �� 
�����

 
Staff Reports (Tab D) May 8, 2013 18



STAFF REPORT 
 
To: Mayor Dent 
From: Nick Bird, P.E., Director of Public Works 
Date: May 2, 2013 
Re: Panic Alarm 
 
 
Staff has reviewed the three proposals for the front office staff and court clerk.  The 
primary focus of the review was equipment costs, installation costs and requirements, and 
monthly monitoring costs.   
 
Sound Guard Security Systems out of Olympia provided the lowest initial cost and the 
second lowest monthly monitoring fee.  They were not capable of providing wrist watch 
type activation units as was originally requested, but the users have indicated that they 
will accept the substitute provided.    
 
The total project cost includes the installation of dedicated electrical and dedicated phone 
outlets on the wall adjacent to the phone equipment in Wendy’s Office, and labor to clean 
up the cabling on this wall to accommodate the additional equipment.  
 
The estimated total project cost for the installation is $1,955.54 plus a $70.18 per month 
for monitoring and the dedicated phone line.   
 
At this time, we are still working with Sound Guard to determine if the fax machine’s 
telephone line will be sufficient in lieu of a dedicated phone line.   
   
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
As has been previously indicated, staff is concerned that personal safety can be easily 
compromised.   
 
Action Requested:   
 
At the time this report was prepared, the attached agreement is currently under legal 
review.  Please consider authorizing the City to execute the attached agreement pursuant 
to his recommendations.           

Tab E 

Panic Alarm (Tab E) May 8, 2013 19



City Hall Alarm Project

Allied Fire & Security Monitoring Installation

8 zone control panel $30.00 $1,675.93

Keypad

Transmitter switch

4 braclet panic buttons

training

per quote.

Hometown Electric $790.00

Quote to provide dedicated 120VAC

receptical next to alarm equipment

on back wall of Wendy's Office.

Century Link $41.18 $190.00

Trip charge and 2 hours of labor to

install dedicated phone line for system.

(If required)

Adnets $270.00

IT Work required to clean up back wall

of Wendy's Office

City Crew $0.00

Fire Rated Plywood not required per email

Alarm Monthly total $71.18 Subtotal $2,925.93
 Sales Tax 8.4% $245.78

Estimated total project cost $3,171.71

Panic Alarm (Tab E) May 8, 2013 20



Pioneer Fire & Security Monitoring Installation

8 zone control panel $21.00 $790.00

Keypad

4 remote panic buttons

1 fixed panic button at the front counter.

Hometown Electric $790.00

Quote to provide dedicated 120VAC

receptical next to alarm equipment

on back wall of Wendy's Office.

Century Link $41.18 $190.00

Trip charge and 2 hours of labor to

install dedicated phone line for system.

(If required)

Adnets $270.00

IT Work required to clean up back wall

of Wendy's Office

City Crew $0.00

Fire Rated Plywood not required per email

Alarm Monthly total $62.18 Subtotal $2,040.00
Sales Tax 8.4% 171.36

$2,211.36

Panic Alarm (Tab E) May 8, 2013 21



Sound Guard Monitoring Installation

8 zone control panel $29.00 $554.00

Keypad

4 remote panic buttons

1 fixed panic button at the front counter.

Hometown Electric $790.00

Quote to provide dedicated 120VAC

receptical next to alarm equipment

on back wall of Wendy's Office.

Century Link $41.18 $190.00

Trip charge and 2 hours of labor to

install dedicated phone line for system.

(If required)

Adnets $270.00

IT Work required to clean up back wall

of Wendy's Office

City Crew $0.00

Fire Rated Plywood not required per email

Alarm Monthly total $70.18 Subtotal $1,804.00
Sales Tax 8.4% 151.536

$1,955.54

Panic Alarm (Tab E) May 8, 2013 22



Panic Alarm (Tab E) May 8, 2013 23



Panic Alarm (Tab E) May 8, 2013 24



Ordinance 796 Clarification (Tab F) May 8, 2013 25



Ordinance 796 Clarification (Tab F) May 8, 2013 26



Ordinance 796 Clarification (Tab F) May 8, 2013 27



Ordinance 796 Clarification (Tab F) May 8, 2013 28



Ordinance 796 Clarification (Tab F) May 8, 2013 29



STAFF REPORT 
 
To: Mayor Dent 
From: Nick Bird, P.E., Director of Public Works 
Date: May 2, 2013 
Re: Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 
 
 
Attached you will find a copy of Progress Estimate No. 7 for the Wellfield Improvements 
Project.  Included with this Progress Estimate is a summary of work performed during the 
progress estimate time period.   
 
 
Action Requested:   
 
Please authorize payment of Progress Estimate No. 7 to Award Construction in the 
amount of $35,288.35 and deposit $1,706.40 into the retainage account. 

Tab G 

Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 30



Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 31



Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 32



Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 33



Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 34



Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 35



Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 36



Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G) May 8, 2013 37



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Nick Bird, P.E., Director of Public Works 

Date: May 2, 2013 

Re: 2014 STIP  

 

 

We have tried to set the required Public Hearing for the STIP over the last few meetings, 

but unfortunately it has been lost in the drum of action items.  Since our only option at 

this time is the June 26 Council Meeting to ensure adoption prior to the July 1 deadline, 

we thought it prudent to set the date now.  Unfortunately we cannot have the public 

hearing next meeting as we have already eclipsed the notification window required for 

the public hearing.  After the May 22 meeting, our next meeting will not be until June 26, 

as a result of our summer schedule.   

 

In an effort to get a jump start on this year’s program, we have attached last year’s map 

and detailed information.  If there are any priority revisions or additional projects that 

you believe should be considered, now is the perfect time to bring that up.  Please keep in 

mind that the State, through the STP program will only fund projects on “Functionally 

Classified Roadways”, which is limited to 3
rd

 Street, Mox Chehalis Road, Simpson 

Avenue, and Summit Road.        

 

 

Staff Recommendation:   

 

The 2014 STIP Public Hearing should be set by Council on June 26, 2013.  We will make 

appropriate revisions to incorporate the 3
rd

 Street Improvements Phase I as currently 

funded.    

 

Action Requested:   

 

Please set the 2014 STIP Public Hearing for June 26, 2013.  Please provide any 

additional comments or suggestions regarding the existing STIP.      

 

Tab H 

2014 STIP (Tab H) May 8, 2013 38



S
.R

. 8

S.R. 108

E
lm

a
 H

ic
k
li n

 R
d

.  
W

.

4
th

 S
t.

3
rd

 S
t.

Foreman Rd.

McCleary Rd.

S
u
m

m
it
 R

d
.

O
ld

 S
a
n
d
 C

re
e
k 

R
d
.

6
th

 S
t.

Mox Chehalis Rd. E.

Maple St.

Elm
a M

cCleary R
d.

1
s
t S

t .

Larson Rd.

5
t h

 S
t.

2
n

d
 S

t.M
a

in
 S

t.

Mommsen Rd.

Olin
 Ave.

Church Rd.

Fir St

Lynch Rd.

Wildcat Rd.

Oak St.

Hemlock St.

Ash St.

Beck St.

Elma Hicklin Rd. E.

WSDOT

Heslep Ln.

8
th

 S
t .

9
t h

 S
t.

M
o

x
 C

h
e
h

a
lis

 R
d

.

B
irc

h
 S

t.

O
v
e
rl

a
k
e

 L
n

.

M
c
C

o
n

k
e

y
 A

v
e

.

1
0

th
 S

t.

Luscom
be Ct.

1
s
t S

t .

S.R. 8

W
SDOT

S
.R

. 8

S.R. 108

E
lm

a
 H

ic
k
li n

 R
d

.  
W

.

4
th

 S
t.

3
rd

 S
t.

Foreman Rd.

McCleary Rd.

S
u
m

m
it
 R

d
.

O
ld

 S
a
n
d
 C

re
e
k 

R
d
.

6
th

 S
t.

Mox Chehalis Rd. E.

Maple St.

Elm
a M

cCleary R
d.

1
s
t S

t .

Larson Rd.

5
t h

 S
t.

2
n

d
 S

t.M
a

in
 S

t.

Mommsen Rd.

Olin
 Ave.

Church Rd.

Fir St

Lynch Rd.

Wildcat Rd.

Oak St.

Hemlock St.

Ash St.

Beck St.

Elma Hicklin Rd. E.

WSDOT

Heslep Ln.

8
th

 S
t .

9
t h

 S
t.

M
o

x
 C

h
e
h

a
lis

 R
d

.

B
irc

h
 S

t.

O
v
e
rl

a
k
e

 L
n

.

M
c
C

o
n

k
e

y
 A

v
e

.

1
0

th
 S

t.

Luscom
be Ct.

1
s
t S

t .

S.R. 8

W
SDOT

�
0 1,900 3,800

SCALE: 1"=2000'

CITY OF McCLEARY
FIGURE 1

2013 STIP PROJECTS

CGASKIN C:\Temporary Drawing Files\McCleary\FIG 1 - STIP PROJECTS.mxd

Legend

CITY LIMITS

PARCELS

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

TO ABERDEEN

TO OLYMPIA

TO SHELTON

P 1.2 P 1.1

P 5

P 4.1

P 4.2
P 2.1

P 2.2

P 2.3

P 3.1

P 3.3

P 3.2

P 3.4

P 3.5

���������	
 ��������	��

����� ����������������������	����������� ��������

����� �����������������������	����������� ��������

����� �
��������	
� �!	"�����#����$���%������� ����&�����

����� �����%������!	"�����#�����	�'#(���� �����)����

����� �����%������'#(������	�����	
��*�
+� ����������

����� �
��������	
� �����	
��*���$��+���,%� ����&�����

����� �+���,	#%������	
��*����	�-��(���� ����)�����

����� �+���,	#%��-��(������	����	.�-��%/� ���0�&����

����0 �+���,	#%�����	.�-��%/���	��,���) �����&����

����& �+���,	#%���,���)��	�1��-�#����� ����))����

��0�� ���0���������������	
��*����	���
����� ����)�����

��0�� ���0����������
�������	��	+������2�3���� ��)0����

��& ���!#������������&��������	������%���� ���0����

��	4���

2014 STIP (Tab H) May 8, 2013 39



 2013 STIP Base Data

Project Description Improvement Start Year Total Cost Local Cost State Cost

P 1.1 West Ash; N. 9th St. to N. 7th St. (A) 2013 132,000$             7,000$           125,000$             

P 1.2 West Ash; N. 10th St. to N. 9th St. (A) 2013 113,000$             6,000$           107,000$             

P 2.1 Intersection - Mox Chehalis / 3rd Street (B) 2014 1,250,000$          63,000$         1,187,000$          

P 2.2 S. 3rd St.; Mox Chehalis to Oak St. (C) 2014 1,118,000$          56,000$         1,062,000$          

P 2.3 S. 3rd St.; Oak St. to Simpson Avenue (C) 2015 1,077,000$          54,000$         1,023,000$          

P 3.1 Intersection - Simpson Ave. / Summit Rd. (B) 2015 1,250,000$          63,000$         1,187,000$          

P 3.2 Summit Road; Simpson Ave. to Beck St. (D) 2016+ 1,187,000$          60,000$         1,127,000$          

P 3.3 Summit Road; Beck St. to N. of Bridge (D) 2016+ 1,435,000$          72,000$         1,363,000$          

P 3.4 Summit Road; N. of Bridge to SR 108 (D) 2016+ 1,325,000$          67,000$         1,258,000$          

P 3.5 Summit Road; SR 108 to E. Bear St. (D) 2016+ 1,788,000$          90,000$         1,698,000$          

P 4.1 S. 4th St.; W. Simpson Ave. to Pine St. (D) 2016+ 1,081,000$          55,000$         1,026,000$          

P 4.2 S. 4th St.; Pine St. to South City Limits (A) 2016+ 284,000$             15,000$         269,000$             

P 5 W. Maple St.; S. 5th St. to S. 3rd St. (D) 2016+ 724,000$             37,000$         687,000$             

Total……………………………………………………………………………………….. 12,764,000$        645,000$       12,119,000$        

Improvement Key

(A) Resurface & Repair

(B) Roundabout, New Curb and Gutter, Storm, Sidewalk, Landscaping, and Bike Lane

(C) Resurface & Repair, New Curb and Gutter, Storm, Planter Strip, Sidewalk and Bike Lane

(D) Resurface, Widen, New Curb and Gutter, Storm, Sidewalk, Planter Strip, and Bike Lane

Page 1 of 2

2014 STIP (Tab H) May 8, 2013 40



 2013 STIP Base Data

Project Description Improvement 2013 2014 2015 2016+

P 1.1 West Ash; N. 9th St. to N. 7th St. (A) 132,000$       

P 1.2 West Ash; N. 10th St. to N. 9th St. (A) 113,000$       

P 2.1 Intersection - Mox Chehalis / 3rd Street (B) 1,250,000$    

P 2.2 S. 3rd St.; Mox Chehalis to Oak St. (C) 1,118,000$    

P 2.3 S. 3rd St.; Oak St. to Simpson Avenue (C) 1,077,000$    

P 3.1 Intersection - Simpson Ave. / Summit Rd. (B) 1,250,000$    

P 3.2 Summit Road; Simpson Ave. to Beck St. (D) 1,187,000$    

P 3.3 Summit Road; Beck St. to N. of Bridge (D) 1,435,000$    

P 3.4 Summit Road; N. of Bridge to SR 108 (D) 1,325,000$    

P 3.5 Summit Road; SR 108 to E. Bear St. (D) 1,788,000$    

P 4.1 S. 4th St.; W. Simpson Ave. to Pine St. (D) 1,081,000$    

P 4.2 S. 4th St.; Pine St. to South City Limits (A) 284,000$       

P 5 W. Maple St.; S. 5th St. to S. 3rd St. (D) 724,000$       

Total………………………………………………………………………………………..245,000$       2,368,000$    2,327,000$    7,824,000$    

Improvement Key

(A) Resurface & Repair

(B) Roundabout, New Curb and Gutter, Storm, Sidewalk, Landscaping, and Bike Lane

(C) Resurface & Repair, New Curb and Gutter, Storm, Planter Strip, Sidewalk and Bike Lane

(D) Resurface, Widen, New Curb and Gutter, Storm, Sidewalk, Planter Strip, and Bike Lane

Page 2 of 2

2014 STIP (Tab H) May 8, 2013 41



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Nick Bird, P.E., Director of Public Works 

Date: May 2, 2013 

Re: Firework Stand Permit  

 

 

The Olympic Christian Center has applied for a fireworks stand permit and building 

permit as they have done for the last few years.  Historically, the approval decision has 

been the City Council’s as it relates to the sale of merchandise within the public right-of-

way in conjunction with the Building Official’s review for fire and safety inspections.   

 

In accordance with RCW 70.77.395, it is legal to sell fireworks from June 29 through 

July 5.   

 

 

Action Requested:   
 

Authorize the City to issue a fireworks stand permit allowing the sale of fireworks in 

accordance with RCW 70.77.395.    

Tab I 

Fireworks Stand (Tab I) May 8, 2013 42



Fireworks Stand (Tab I) May 8, 2013 43



Fireworks Stand (Tab I) May 8, 2013 44



Fireworks Stand (Tab I) May 8, 2013 45



Fireworks Stand (Tab I) May 8, 2013 46



STAFF REPORT 
 
To: Mayor Dent 
From: Nick Bird, P.E., Director of Public Works 
Date: May 2, 2013 
Re: Asphalt Patching  
 
 
We have numerous asphalt patches that we have been waiting for good weather to 
facilitate.  We have received a quote from Lakeside to conduct the work, with the City 
completing the prep work and traffic control.   
 
Three items were estimated, as shown on the attached proposal.  At this time, our primary 
focus is only the “Various Patching” item, due to budget constraints.  You will note that 
the other two items have a lower unit price, which is due to different equipment that can 
be utilized on larger areas to increase production rates.   
 
The “Various Patching” item incorporates eight different projects where asphalt is 
required.  All of these items are considered “public work”, so in order to ensure the State 
Auditor does not claim that we are bid splitting, we have shown the total project cost as 
well.  You will note that all projects are below the bid limit of $65,000 (for work with 
multiple trades) and $40,000 (for work with a single trade) as required by RCW 
35.23.352 (1).  As such, we are requesting authorization to proceed with the “Various 
Patching” in accordance with RCW 35.23.352.   
 
Please note that not all of this cost would be shouldered by the Street Department, as the 
work completed dictates the fund that is paying for the restoration cost.  The attached 
excel spreadsheet shows the breakdown by fund.  All of these items would be funded 
from the “Repair and Maintenance” line items, which have adequate funding budgeted.   
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Asphalt removed for any form of work cannot be left as gravel for a roadway surface.  
We currently utilize “cold mix”, which is a more expensive temporary form of asphalt 
that does not last very long until “hot mix” asphalt such as this can be installed.  Of 
course we would like to put more asphalt on the ground throughout the City, but we 
thought it prudent to just request the bare minimum at this point in time.   
 
Action Requested:   
 
Please consider authorizing the “Various Patching” work to be conducted by Lakeside for 
a total cost of $9,625 plus sales tax.      
 

Tab J 

Asphalt Patching (Tab J) May 8, 2013 47



Lakeside Patching 2013

NDB - 5/3/13

Unit Price = 175.00$       / TN

Area 

No. Description Cost Fund

Estimated Total 

Project Cost

# of 

Trades

1 Luscomb Replacement 16  / TN 2,800.00$  Light and Power 40,000.00$             Multiple

2 Wildcat Sewer Replacement 7  / TN 1,225.00$  Sewer 11,500.00$             Multiple

3 Shoulder Repair - Alley behind Gordons 15  / TN 2,625.00$  Street 3,000.00$                One

4 Simpson Water Line Patch 3  / TN 525.00$      Water 2,500.00$                Multiple

5 7th Street Widening at Intersection 5  / TN 875.00$      Street 2,000.00$                One

6 VFW Sidewalk Patch 6  / TN 1,050.00$  Street 7,000.00$                Multiple

7 Water Valve Depression at Simpson and Summit 1  / TN 175.00$      Water 5,000.00$                Multiple

8 Water Tap Patch on 3rd Street 2  / TN 350.00$      Water 2,200.00$                Multiple

Total…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..9,625.00$   + Sales Tax

Fund Totals

Street…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….4,550.00$   + Sales Tax

Light and Power…………………………………………………………………………………………….2,800.00$   + Sales Tax

Water……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..1,050.00$   + Sales Tax

Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..1,225.00$   + Sales Tax

Total…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..9,625.00$   + Sales Tax

Quantity

Asphalt Patching (Tab J) May 8, 2013 48



 
LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES, INC.  PROPOSAL/CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

 ACCT./ADMIN. OFFICE: P.O. BOX 7016     ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 (425) 313-2600  
“AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER” 

 

LI CONT 08.06.27 1 of 4 

 
Lakeside Industries, Inc. 
PO Box 928 
Aberdeen, WA  98520 

Phone-(360)533-0610 Fax- (360)533-1772 

CONTRACTING PARTY 
 

JOB N0.           

City of McCleary 

100 South 3
rd

 Street 

McCleary, WA  98557 

      
 

LOCATION & TYPE 
OF WORK:       

Various Asphalt Repairs 

      

      

      
 

 Bid Item

Approximate 

Quantity

Unit of 

Measure Description Unit Price Total Price

1 55 Ton Various Patching 175.00$           9,625.00$          

Furnish and install hot mix asphalt (3" depth                       

                      
2 45 Ton Area Behind Grocery Store 140.00$           6,300.00$          

                      
3 190 Ton 5th Street 115.00$           21,850.00$        

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      

                      
APPROXIMATE TOTAL (Plus sales tax where applicable)

37,775.00$        
Total price to be based on actual quantity or measurement unless otherwise specified.

Exclusions: Tax, excavation, rock, utility adjustments,  

 Notes: *City crews will excavate or clean all area's and supply any traffic control necessary. 

Lakeside’s proposed prices herein assume that Lakeside’s work hereunder will be substantially complete  

 on or before: August 1, 2013. 

Unless Contracting Party has signed and returned this Agreement within thirty (30) calendar days of the date first stated above, 

Lakeside’s proposal shall be null and void. 

Date: May 1, 2013 
 

Asphalt Patching (Tab J) May 8, 2013 49



 

LI CONT 08.06.27 2 of 4 

CONTRACTING PARTY’S SIGNATURE ON ONE COPY RETURNED TO LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES, INC. WILL RENDER THIS A LEGAL CONTRACT FOR 
THE PERFORMANCE OF THE ABOVE WORK.  CONTRACTING PARTY’S SIGNATURE ALSO ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF LAKESIDE’S ’NOTICE TO 

CUSTOMER’ STATEMENT ATTACHED HERETO. 

APPROVED BY CONTRACTING PARTY:  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES, INC. 
WA. CONTRACTOR’S REG. LAKESI*274JD 
OR. CCB 108542 

BY:   BY:  

TITLE:   TITLE: Estimator 

SUBJECT TO THE ATTACHED GENERAL PROVISIONS

Asphalt Patching (Tab J) May 8, 2013 50



 

LI CONT 08.06.27 3 of 4 

General Provisions 

1.  DEFINITIONS.  As used herein, (i) “Contractor” shall mean Lakeside 

Industries, Inc. or any division thereof; (ii) “Contracting Party” shall mean the 
person or entity purchasing materials and/or services as set forth on the front 
page hereof and pursuant to these General Provisions; and (iii) “Agreement” 

shall mean the contract formed between Contractor and Contracting Party by 
Contracting Party’s acceptance of those terms and conditions set forth on the 
front page hereof and these General Provisions and/or materials and/or 

services provided to Contracting Party by Contractor. 

2.  ACCEPTANCE.  Unless Contracting Party has signed and returned this 

Agreement to Contractor within thirty (30) calendar days of the date first 
stated on the front page hereof, Contractor’s proposal shall be null and void.  
Contractor hereby objects to any conflicting, additional and/or different terms 

contained in any proposal or other writing issued by Contracting Party for 
purposes of accepting the proposal set forth herein and the same shall not 
become a part of this Agreement unless agreed upon in writing by Contractor 

and Contracting Party. 

3.  COST ESCALATION FOR ASPHALT.  Contractor’s proposal herein is 

based upon local vendor posted prices for liquid asphalt as of the date of 
Contractor’s proposal.  In the event the actual prices exceed such posted 

prices, the Contract Price shall be equitably adjusted by change order to 
reflect such increase.  Contractor reserves the right to terminate this 
Agreement if an equitable adjustment cannot be agreed upon by Contracting 

Party and Contractor.  Payment for any such adjustment shall be made in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

4.  CREDIT VERIFICATION.  This Agreement is subject to Contractor’s 

verification of Contracting Party’s credit and Contractor’s determination that 
such credit is adequate or satisfactory to Contractor.  Contractor reserves the 

right to withdraw its proposal should Contractor reasonably determine that 
such credit verification is unsatisfactory or inadequate. 

5.  TERMS OF PAYMENT.  Unless otherwise provided for herein, payment 

shall be due to Contractor within ten (10) days of the date of any invoice 

issued by Contractor to Contracting Party.  Interest shall accrue on all overdue 
invoices at the rate of 1-1/2% per month (18.00% per annum) or the highest 
rate allowed by law. 

6.  SCHEDULE.  This Agreement is subject to Contractor’s review and 
approval of Contracting Party’s schedule.  Contracting Party shall coordinate 

other contractors’ and subcontractors’ work to prevent any delay or 
interference with Contractor’s work. 

7.  CHANGES.  Contracting Party, without invalidating the Agreement, may 

order changes in the scope of the work provided for by this Agreement, with 

the cost of the work and the time to complete such work being adjusted 
accordingly.  Such changes in the work shall be authorized only by written 
change order signed by Contracting Party and Contractor. 

8.  PROPERTY LINES.  Contracting Party warrants that Contracting Party 
knows the actual location of all legal property lines and that Contracting Party, 

prior to commencement of work hereunder, shall place stakes clearly 
indicating such property lines.  

9.  PERMITS.  Any permits that must be secured prior to commencement of 

the work hereunder shall be secured and paid for by Contracting Party. 

10.  DELAYS.  If Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or 
progress of the work by any act or neglect of Contracting Party, or by any 

employee or agent of Contracting Party, or by any separate contractor 
employed by Contracting Party, or by changes ordered in the work by 
Contracting Party, or by labor disputes, fire, abnormal adverse weather 

conditions, force majeure, unusual delay in transportation, fuel, material, or 
labor shortages or unavailability, action or inaction of public authorities not 
arising out of the fault of Contractor, casualties or any other causes beyond 

Contractor’s reasonable control, then the Contract Time shall be extended by 
change order for a period of time reasonably necessary to alleviate the effect 
of such events on Contractor.  Delays beyond Contractor’s reasonable control 

shall be compensable to Contractor and such equitable adjustment of the 
Contract Price shall be made by change order.  Contractor reserves the right 
to terminate this Agreement if an equitable adjustment cannot be agreed upon 

by Contracting Party and Contractor.  Payment for any such adjustment shall 
be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

11.  HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES.  Contracting Party agrees to indemnify, 

defend and hold harmless Contractor and its employees and subcontractors 
from liability related to the existence of hazardous substances at the project 

site, unless such liability results directly from hazardous substances brought 
on to the project site by Contractor or its subcontractors or arises out of the 
negligence or wrongful act of Contractor or its subcontractors.  If Contractor 

encounters a substance on the project site which Contractor believes is a 

hazardous substance, Contractor shall immediately notify Contracting Party 
and shall cease work in whole or in part and any delays (and costs arising 

therefrom) shall be Contracting Party’s responsibility. 

12.  TERMINATION FOR CAUSE.  Contractor has the right to terminate this 

Agreement if Contracting Party fails to comply with any of the other provisions 
herein; provided, further, Contractor may terminate this Agreement in the 
event of the happening of any of the following: (a) insolvency of Contracting 

Party or Contractor; (b) any act of bankruptcy by Contracting Party under any 
provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Act or filing by Contracting Party of a 
voluntary petition under any law providing for relief from the claims of 

creditors; (c) the filing of an involuntary petition to have Contracting Party 
adjudicated as bankrupt under the Federal Bankruptcy Act or for 
reorganization of Contracting Party under that Act or under any law providing 

for relief from the claims of creditors which is not vacated within thirty (30) 
days from the date of such filing; (d) the appointment of a receiver or trustee 
for Contracting Party or Contractor which is not vacated within thirty (30) days 

from the date of such appointment; (e) the execution by Contracting Party or 
Contractor of an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or (f) any other event 
occurring which under the applicable law would entitle Contractor to cancel 

and terminate this Agreement.  Such termination shall not prejudice any 
claims that either party may have against the other. 

13.  INDEMNITY.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall 

indemnify and hold harmless Contracting Party from and against claims, 

damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, 
arising out of or resulting from performance of the work hereunder, provided 
that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily injury, 

sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, 
including loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by 
negligent acts or omissions of Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable.  
Contracting Party shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor from and 
against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to 

attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by negligent acts or omissions of 
Contracting Party, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by it or anyone for 
whose acts it may be liable. 

14.  WARRANTIES.  Contractor warrants and guarantees all work and/or 
materials provided under this Agreement shall be of good quality and 

workmanship, free from faults and defects and in conformance with this 
Agreement.  Contractor further agrees to make good, at its own expense, any 
defect in materials or workmanship which may appear within one (1) year of 

Contractor’s substantial completion of its work hereunder.  Except as 
otherwise provided herein, Contractor makes no warranties or representations 

of any kind, express or implied (including no warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for a particular purpose) and none shall be implied by law.  Contracting 
Party agrees that oral agreements, statements and representations made by 

Contractor, its employees or its agents shall not constitute a warranty of any 
kind. 

15.  TIME LIMITATION ON CLAIMS.  Any action arising out of Contracting 

Party’s purchase of materials or Contractor’s provision of services to 
Contracting Party, including any action arising under this Agreement, must be 

commenced within one (1) year after substantial completion of Contractor’s 
work hereunder, and no such action may be maintained which is not 
commenced within such one-year period. 

16.  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  Contractor’s sole liability and Contracting 
Party’s sole and exclusive remedy for any and all damages, special, direct, 

incidental or consequential, sustained by Contracting Party or others arising of 
Contractor’s performance of this Agreement shall be limited to correcting 
defective work.  In no event shall Contractor be liable to Contracting Party or 

any third party for more than the amount of Contractor’s proposal, or for any 
delay damages. 

Under no circumstances shall Contractor be liable for (i) damage to or 

breakage of underground pipes and/or conduits and cables not visible from 

the surface of the ground nor for any damage to approaches (including 
sidewalks) from the street to the property line; (ii) damage to the completed 
pavement surface due to the action of petroleum product spillage; (iii) 

subgrade failure or utility ditch failure; or (iv) growth of horsetail weed, 
morning glory, deep-rooted ferns or perennials subsequent to the application 
of soil sterilization (weed killer) that have not reached maturity prior to such 

application.  Any soil sterilization provided for in this Agreement shall be 
applied at the rate specified by the manufacturer thereof. 

17.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION/ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  Contracting Party and 

Contractor agree that all claims, collections, disputes, or other controversies 
arising under this Agreement or related hereto, shall be settled by and subject 

to litigation, or at the sole choice of the contractor, binding arbitration with a 

Asphalt Patching (Tab J) May 8, 2013 51



 

LI CONT 08.06.27 4 of 4 

single arbitrator pursuant to the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the 
American Arbitration Association (“AAA”).  Any such arbitration shal l be 

commenced by the Contractor delivering a written demand for arbitration to 
the AAA, and a copy of such demand shall be delivered to the Contracting 
Party.  Contracting Party and Contractor agree that the location of any such 

arbitration proceeding shall be at the Seattle, Washington AAA office. Any 
arbitration award by the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties and 
subject to confirmation and reduction to judgment pursuant to RCW 7.04 in 

the King County Superior Court. In any such litigation or arbitration, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.   

18.  GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

19.  SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any paragraph, part, term, or condition 

of this Agreement is construed or held to be void, invalid or unenforceable by 

an arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining paragraphs, 
parts, terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

20.  VOLUNTARY CONTRACT.  Each of the parties to this Agreement has 
carefully read and fully understands the terms and conditions hereof, has had 

full opportunity to consult with legal counsel regarding its meaning and effect, 
and is entering into this Agreement freely and voluntarily, through a 

representative who is fully authorized and empowered to sign on its behalf. 

21.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  Contracting Party and Contractor intend that the 

proposal and those terms and conditions on the front page hereof and these 
General Provisions shall constitute the final, complete and exclusive 
Agreement between the parties.  This Agreement supersedes all other prior or 

contemporaneous agreements, representations, understandings and 
promises, oral and/or written, by or between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof.  Contracting Party further acknowledges and agrees 

that in entering into this Agreement, Contracting Party has not and is not 
relying upon any contemporaneous agreements, representations, 
understandings and promises, oral and/or written, made by Contractor.  No 

course of dealings between the parties shall be relevant or admissible to 
explain, supplement or vary the terms of this Agreement.  No amendment or 
modification of this Agreement shall be effective or binding upon the parties 

unless made in writing and executed by Contracting Party and Contractor. 
 

State of Washington 

NOTICE TO CUSTOMER(RCW 18.27.114) 
 

Lakeside Industries, Inc. is registered with the State of Washington, Registration No. LAKESI*274JD, and 
has posted with the state a bond or deposit of $12,000 for the purpose of satisfying claims against 
Lakeside Industries for breach of contract including negligent or improper work in the conduct of Lakeside 
Industries’ business.  The expiration date of Lakeside Industries' registration is July 31st. 
 

THIS BOND OR DEPOSIT MIGHT NOT BE SUFFICIENT TO COVER A CLAIM THAT MIGHT ARISE 
FROM THE WORK DONE UNDER YOUR CONTRACT.  
 

This bond or deposit is not for your exclusive use because it covers all work performed by Lakeside 
Industries.  The bond or deposit is intended to pay valid claims up to $12,000 that you and other 
customers, suppliers, subcontractors, or taxing authorities may have.  
 

FOR GREATER PROTECTION YOU MAY WITHHOLD A PERCENTAGE OF YOUR CONTRACT.  
 

You may withhold a contractually defined percentage of your construction contract as retainage for a stated 
period of time to provide protection to you and help insure that your project will be completed as required 
by your contract.  
 

YOUR PROPERTY MAY BE LIENED. 
 

If a supplier of materials used in your construction project or an employee or subcontractor of Lakeside 
Industries, Inc. or its subcontractors is not paid, your property may be liened to force payment and you 
could pay twice for the same work.  
 

FOR ADDITONAL PROTECTION, YOU MAY REQUEST LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES, INC. TO PROVIDE 
YOU WITH ORIGINAL "LIEN RELEASE" DOCUMENTS FROM EACH SUPPLIER OR 
SUBCONTRACTOR ON YOUR PROJECT. 
 

Lakeside Industries, Inc. is required to provide you with further information about lien release documents if 
you request it.  General information is also available from the state Department of Labor and Industries.  

Asphalt Patching (Tab J) May 8, 2013 52



Asphalt Patching (Tab J) May 8, 2013 53



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 54



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 55



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 56



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 57



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 58



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 59



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 60



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 61



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 62



Resolution - Public Services (Tab K) May 8, 2013 63



Resolution - Public Records Officer / Fees (Tab L) May 8, 2013 64



Resolution - Public Records Officer / Fees (Tab L) May 8, 2013 65



Resolution - Public Records Officer / Fees (Tab L) May 8, 2013 66


	Agenda
	Minutes (Tab A)
	City Attorney Report (Tab B)
	Director of Public Works Report (Tab C)
	Staff Reports (Tab D)
	Panic Alarm (Tab E)
	Ordinance 796 Clarification (Tab F)
	Well 2/3 Progress Estimate No. 7 (Tab G)
	2014 STIP (Tab H)
	Fireworks Permit (Tab I)
	Asphalt Patching (Tab J)
	Resolution - Public Services (Tab K)
	Resolution - Public Records Officer / Fees (Tab L)

